
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

SCHOOLS FORUM
will meet on

TUESDAY, 31ST JANUARY, 2017

At 2.30 pm

in the

ASCOT AND BRAY - TOWN HALL, 

TO: Head Teacher Representatives: Isabel Cooke, Richard Pilgrim (Chairman), 
Heidi Swidenbank, Helen McHale, Alison Penny, Nick Stevens (Vice-Chairman), 
Stuart Muir, Joolz Scarlett, Tony Dickens, Mike Wallace, Chris Tomes, Amanda 
Hough and Martin Tinsley.

Governor Representatives: Hugh Boulter and Jo Haswell.

          Non- School Representatives: Gina Kendall and Anne Entwistle.

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: 23/01/17

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the 
Council’s web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator  David Cook 01628 796560

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Congregate in the Town Hall 
Car Park, Park Street, Maidenhead (immediately adjacent to the Town Hall) and do not re-enter the building until told 
to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings – The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This 
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are 
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on 
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic 
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

7 - 8

3.  MINUTES

To approve the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2015.
 

9 - 14

4.  DSG 2017-18 SETTLEMENT AND STRATEGY FOR MANAGING DSG 
IN FUTURE YEARS

To note the report.
 

15 - 28

5.  EARLY YEARS FUNDING FORMULA  2017-18

To consider the report.
 

6.  2017-18 SCHOOLS BUDGET AND CENTRALLY RETAINED BUDGET 
PROPOSALS

To consider the report. 
 

29 - 40

7.  NEW ASSESSMENT CRITERIA

To consider the report. 
 

To 
Follow

8.  DSG 2017-18 SETTLEMENT AND STRATEGY FOR MANAGING DSG 
IN FUTURE YEARS

To approve the strategy. 
 

Verbal 
Report

9.  OUTCOME OF DFE SECOND CONSULTATION ON NATIONAL 
FUNDING FORMULA

To consider the report.
 

41 - 50

10.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place 



on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act"
 



PRIVATE MEETING - PART II

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

11.  MINUTES 

To approve the Part II minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2016.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

51 - 52





This page is intentionally left blank



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS 
 
 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 
 
DPIs include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any 
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed 
which has not been fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, 
and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would 
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public 
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to 
impartially consider only relevant issues.   
 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or  
Prejudicial Interest.  If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests 
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.  
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the 
item but  must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’ 
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body 
determining the issue.  You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your 
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote, 
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.  
 
If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services 
Officer before participating in the meeting. 
 
If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify 
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  
 
 
 

7

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



SCHOOLS FORUM

TUESDAY, 11 OCTOBER 2016

PRESENT: Head Teacher Representatives: Isabel Cooke, Richard Pilgrim (Chairman), 
Heidi Swidenbank, Helen McHale, Nick Stevens (Vice-Chairman), Stuart Muir, Joolz 
Scarlett, Tony Dickens, Mike Wallace and Martin Tinsley.

Governor Representatives: Hugh Boulter and Jo Haswell.

Non- School Representatives: Gina Kendall and Anne Entwistle.

Also in attendance: Councillor Richard Kellaway and Councillor MJ Saunders.

Officers: Alison Alexander, Kevin McDaniels, David Cook and for item 4 Debbie Verity 
and Geoff King.

APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Alison Penny, Chris Tomes and Amanda Hough.  

The Chairman informed that an urgent and confidential item had been added to the meeting 
agenda as a part II item. 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest received. 

MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 5th July 2016 were approved as true and correct record 
subject to ‘in October 2014’ being added to page 7 for the Growth Fund discussion and Heidi 
Swidenbank replacing Heidi Swindenbank on page 9.

The Chairman informed that at the last meeting communication of decisions made by the 
Forum had been raised as an issue and requested that Forum members inform schools in 
their sector of decisions made as well as the LEA. 

RBWM CONSULTATION ON HIGH NEEDS FUNDING 

The Forum considered the report that proposed that the schools forum agreed to a period of 
consultation, leading to a revised process for allocating High Needs Funding to support 
Children and Young People eligible for an education, health and care (EHC) plan or statement 
of special educational needs.

Debbie Verity and Geoff King attended the meeting to present the report to the Forum.  

The Forum were informed that process only applied to high needs pupils in mainstream 
schools or colleges and did not apply to high needs pupils in resource provision / units or 
special schools.

The Forum were informed that 1.4 of the report showed comparative spend on high needs 
block with other authorities, however as this was misleading additional information was 
circulated that showed the percentage of spend per SEN pupil.  This additional information 
showed that RBWMs spend was comparatively high when looking at the percentage of DSG 

9

Agenda Item 3



spent.  It was questioned why RBWM spend had not increased as much as other authorities 
and the Forum were informed that RBWM was still spending more when compared with our 
statistical neighbours. 

It is proposed that, once evidence had been received that a pupil met the criteria for statutory 
assessment, a funding matrix would be used to assess the level of High Needs top-up funding 
that will be made available.  The matrix would consist of the main categories of need as 
identified in the Code of Practice 2014 and in use by other authorities.  The proposed matrix 
shown to the Forum was a starting point and could  be changed / reviewed as required.  
Figure 2 of the report showed the proposed example matrix that would be used when 
consulting on the methodology. 

The Forum were informed that the level of funding would not be decreased by the proposed 
process it was about how the level of funding was distributed. It was noted that the 
consultation was about the system and not the funding.

In response to questions from the Chairman the Forum were informed that the consultation 
would take place over the autumn term with the results and proposals coming back to the 
Forum on December 2016 with implementation in April 2017.

The Chairman mentioned that the following issues may arise from the consultation:

• Who would populate the matrix.
• What level of expertise would those have forming the matrix.
• Moderation and scrutiny.
• Staff planning.
• Existing pupils; what process for transferring existing pupils to the matrix.

The Forum were informed that it was assumed that there would be a transitional period with 
the use of the matrix being for new assessments and used on existing statements when they 
were reviewed. 

In response to questions the Forum were informed that the consultation would be with as 
many stakeholders as possible including parents; however the overriding say would be with 
the schools. 

Anne Entwistle questioned what would happen with child transfers and mentioned that we 
needed to be mindful of the FE sector.  She also mentioned that the report did not mention 
requests for increases in place funding to support the additional high needs students on roll at 
BCA and that the BCA currently had a funding gap.  In response the Forum were informed 
that it was the responsibility of the local authority placing the pupil to pay the top-up and with 
regards to the BCA funding gap this would be reviewed via the annual place number funding 
and commissioning process.

It was questioned what the timetable was for consultation and concern was raised that it would 
be taking place during half term and thus give the impression that it was being hidden.  The 
forum were informed that it would be going to all schools and colleges and certain parents 
during half term.  

Resolved unanimously: that the Schools Forum agrees to a period of 
consultation on proposals for a revised methodology to distribute High Needs 
top-up funding to mainstream schools

10



2016-17 FINALISED DSG SETTLEMENT AND GUARANTEED 2017-18 DSG 
FUNDING. 

The Forum were informed that the report being considered was split into two parts. The first 
summarised changes in RBWM’s 2016-17 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) allocation as a 
result of the finalised settlement announced by the Education Funding Agency in July 2016; 
the impact on planned expenditure in 2016-17, and on the distribution of funding between the 
Early Years, Schools, and High Needs blocks.  

The second part of the report summarised the changes to school funding arrangements for 
2017-18 and RBWM’s indicative 2017-18 DSG allocation.

The Forum were informed that there was an increase of £123k on the DSG settlement 
announced in December 2015, as reported to Schools Forum in March 2016. This increase 
was mainly due to an increase of 31 FTE three and four year olds compared with Jan 2015. 

The Forum noted that the funding arrangements for 2017 to 2018 would remain broadly 
similar to last year, as the DfE had announced that implementation of the national funding 
formula would be put back to 2018-19.  LAs’ 2017-18 allocations for the schools block and 
high needs block would be based on adjusted baselines reflecting LAs’ pattern of planned 
spend in 2016-17 rather than how government previously allocated funding.  

On page 25 of the report table 4 showed the calculation of  the 2016/17 adjusted baseline to 
be used for the indicative 2017-18 allocations, including the transfer of £315k Education 
Services Grant (ESG) retained duties funding in to the schools block DSG and the transfer of 
£492k of place funding from the EFA’s post 16 budget into the high needs block for high 
needs places in further education (FE) colleges. 

The Forum were informed that RBWM’s schools block guaranteed unit of funding for 2017-18, 
£4,421.73 was £34 per pupil less than in 2016-17 due to the amount of schools block funding 
that had been transferred into the high needs baseline. 

With regards to the education services grant general funding rate the Forum were informed 
that the grant would cease in September 2017 as planned. This grant is currently paid to LAs 
for its maintained pupils and separately to academies, at the rate of £77 per pupil.

As well as delegated and central schools block expenditure, schools block funding in 2017/18 
would now include £315k previously paid to the Council as the retained duties element of the 
education services grant to support statutory services provided centrally on behalf of all 
schools. This was a transfer of funding from the LA to the Schools Block, not additional 
funding and the Forum were asked to approve the retention of £315k in the 2017-18 schools 
block central expenditure budget to continue to support the provision of the statutory services. 

Resolved Unanimously: that the Schools Forum approved the retention of £315k 
in 2017-18 for the statutory services set out in paragraph 5.9 previously funded 
by the retained duties element of the Education Services Grant.

The Schools Forum were also asked to comment on and give an in principle agreement to:

 Leave the 2017-18 local school funding formula unchanged from 2016-17 in light of the 
turbulence expected in 2018-19 when the national funding formula would be 
implemented

 Use the 2017-18 basic per pupil entitlement rates across all key stages to balance the 
schools budget if pupil numbers turn out differently from the estimate.

 Retain maintained schools DSG funding in 2017-18 at the rate of £11 per pupil and to 
seek voluntary contributions from Academy schools at a similar level, to part fund 
school improvement / governor services currently funded by the Education Services 
Grant general funding grant that is ceasing in Sep 2017

11



The additional £11 per pupil contribution was being asked for as there had been a reduction in 
funding to the LEA but there had been no reduction in statutory duties. 

(Alison Alexander joined the meeting)

Mike Wallace questioned what the impact would be if the Forum refused the request for £11 
per pupil and was informed that if additional funding for the services could not be found then 
the continued delivery at current levels of services such as school improvement would need to 
be reviewed. 

Nick Stevens mentioned that there was a perception that school improvement services were 
already under resourced and was informed that there were fewer directly employed officers in 
this area. 

Clarification was sought regarding getting funding from academy schools and the forum were 
informed that they would be written to and asked to contribute.  The LA currently provided 
improvement support to all schools; however if academies say no to this proposal then this 
offer would have to be reviewed. 

Mike Wallace said he would like to get the views of academies on this proposal before the 
Forum make a decision as if they said no this would change the proposition.  

Isabel Cooke and Heidi Sweindenbank both felt that academies would not support this 
proposition. 

Resolved unanimously: that the Schools Forum note the report. 
 

DFE'S EARLY YEARS NATIONAL FUNDING FORMULA PROPOSALS 

The Forum considered the information report regarding the DfE’s proposals for an early years 
national funding formula and RBWM’s illustrative 2017-18 early years DSG allocation.  A 
further report would be brought back to the Forum in December 2016 regarding what early 
years funding would look like. 

The Forum were reminded that from September 2017 working parents would be entitled to 30 
hours of free childcare and that the rates paid to providers by LA had to be reviewed. 

The EFA’s intention is to increase funding rates at the local level to incentivise delivery of the 
additional hours for working parents.  .  This would mean that the average national hourly 
funding rate would increase from £4.56 to £4.88 for 3 and 4 year olds. RBWM’s provisional 
funding rate, (the rate used to calculate RBWM’s allocation of funding from the EFA),  would 
be £5.00 per hour, an increase of £0.61 per hour from the current funding rate of £4.39.

The Forum were informed that the proposed increase in RBWM’s funding rate for 3 and 4 year 
olds resulted in a provision 2017-18 allocation of £7.647m, for the free entitlement, an 
increase of £0.927m on the 2016-17 baseline.   In addition, a provisional amount of £1.2m 
would be allocated for the additional hours for working parents covering the period September 
2017 to March 2018. .  Table 2 of the report gave a summary of the changes in funding. 

With regards to disabled or SEN children the Forum were informed that there would be a 
ringfenced Targeted Early Years Disability Access Funding to support access for disabled and 
SEN children. This would be paid to all providers for each child in receipt of Disability Living 
Allowance taking up a place in their setting. In addition, LAs would be required to earmark an 
early years inclusion fund enabling providers to access funding for SEND children more easily.

(Cllr Kellaway left the meeting)
12



Resolved unanimously: that the Forum note the update and that a working group 
be established.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst 
discussion takes place on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

The meeting, which began at 2.30 pm, finished at 5.05 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

13



This page is intentionally left blank



1

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD SCHOOLS FORUM

Date: 31st Jan 2017 AGENDA ITEM: 1

Title: DSG 2017-18 Settlement and Strategy for Managing DSG in Future Years 

Responsible
officer:

Kevin McDaniel, Head of Education and Schools

Contact 
officer:

Phil Herd
Temporary Lead Accountant

Tel:
E-mail

01628 794632
Phil.herd@rbwm.gov.uk 

1 SUMMARY

1.1 This paper summarises RBWM’s  2017-18 DSG allocation and sets out proposals for 
managing the DSG for the next two years.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

Schools Forum is asked to note 

2.1 The final 2017-18 funding settlement as summarised in the tables shown in 3

2.2 Monitoring the DSG strategy will be a standing item for future forum meetings.
 
Schools Forum is asked to endorse

          
i) The overall DSG strategy described in section 4

i) The required high needs block savings in principle. To support the idea that a 
working group be formed to set out detailed measures by which the required 
savings can be made. 

Schools Forum is asked to approve:-

i) The retention of headroom to support the high needs block

ii) A reduction in AWPU of 0.5% to support high needs pressures. It is intended 
that this is initially paid into a specific DSG reserve and only called upon if 
required and with forum approval.

iii) The increased early year’s retention to support high needs.

iv) The carry forward of the DSG Deficit

15

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Phil.herd@rbwm.gov.uk


3 DSG FUNDING FOR 2017-18 

3.1 The arrangements for the 17-18 DSG allocation were covered in detail at Octobers Forum.   
The DFE made the final announcement on 20th December 2016 and the DSG for 17-18 is 
now £109.776.  The main un expected difference is an additional allocation of £390k into the 
high needs block.  The DFE distributed an additional £35m nationally on the basis of 
population growth, into the high needs block.  

   Pupil Funding rate Allocation
        
Numbers

         £        £m

Schools Block 18,816         4,421.73      83.200

High Needs Block           16.909

Early Years Block – 3&4 y.o. 1.610           4,750.00        7.647
- 2 yo & other        2.020

Total DSG 2017-18        109.776

 

3.2 The DSG will change during the year as a result of changes to the early years census and 
the implications will be reported to future schools forum meetings . The movements in the 
DSG from 2016-17 to 2017-18 and the associated budgetary pressures are shown below.

Schools 
Block

Early Years High Needs      Total

          £m          £m         £m        £m
2016-17         82.258        7.379     15.327    104.964
Impact of rebase          -1.119       -0.065         1.184
Sub Total         81.139        7.314                 16.511     104.964
2017-18 
Allocation

        83.200            9.667      16.909     109.776

Increase        2.061        2.353         0.398        4.812

16



3.3 The DSG Budgetary requirements, matched against the grant increases are summarised as 
follows:-

Increase 
in Grant 
£m

Pressures 
£m

Contribution 
to Pressures 
£m

Schools Block            
2,061

               

Increase School Budgets   1,049
ESG Retained Duties      315
Increase in Growth Fund      150
Sub Total Schools       2,061    1,514          547

Early Years Block       2,353 
Increase in 3&4 yo EYNFF   1,578
Increase 2 yo Funding        36
Nursery School Protection       210
SEN Inclusion Fund       160
EYPP Investment Programme         40
Disability Access Fund         20
Sub Total Early Years      2,353     2,044               309

High Needs Block         398
2016-17 Continuing Pressures                1,250
2017-18  New Pressures        800
2017-18 Savings       -900
Sub Total High Needs Block        398     1,150         -752

Other Budget Changes
Saving SEN Consortium         -75
 Minor Changes         -21 
Sub Total Budget Changes         -96            96

Grand Total     4,812       4,612          200

3.4      The table in 3.4 illustrates that there is potentially £547k available headroom within the 
schools block, opposed to the £300k, suggested on 13th December 2016.  This is because 
the numbers of pupil attracting prior attainment funding have fallen, which could not have 
been anticipated.  In addition to this the high needs block has increased by £398k, which is   
due mainly to an additional allocation based upon population growth.  This is now included 
in the base allocation for high needs, but a new formula allocation is to be introduced from 
April 2018.  

3.5 The above movements are favourable and do release some pressure on the DSG. However 
the DFE have now released draft proposals for the re-distribution of high needs funding.  
The indicative figures show that RBWM could lose £2.3m if this formula were implemented 
in full. This is not yet built into the strategy because the proposals have to be finalised. It is 

17



something that will have to be included in the future and may result in the high needs block 
savings having to increase.    

         
4. DSG STRATEGY FOR MANAGING BUDGETARY PRESSURES 

4.1 There are a number of  significant requirements within the High Needs Block of the DSG 
which mean that the overall DSG will go into deficit as at March 2017.  A working group of 

forum members were consulted on 13th Dec about the possible options that could be 
implemented in order to balance the DSG over the next 2 or 3 financial years.

4.2  If all the DSG grant increases were passported to the relevant sectors, the impact these 
requirements would have on the DSG can be summarised below:-

     2016-17      2017-18       2018-19
         £m          £m           £m

DSG Deficit         0.950          3.000
High Needs Overspend        1.250        1.250          1.250
One Off Savings       -0.300
Continuing HNB Requirements              0.800         1.600
Deficit c/f        0.950        3.000         5.850

4.5      These requirements must be managed by taking savings within early years, schools and or 
high needs blocks.  The implications, opportunities and risks associated with such savings 
are described in the attached annexes relating to each block.

4.6      The issues and some possible solutions were discussed at length with a working group of 
forum members on 13th December 2016. The general consensus was that high needs 
budgets have to be more tightly managed which means pupils only being placed in 
specialist provision when absolutely necessary.  Members therefore requested an analysis 
of the most expensive HNB spend to discuss alternatives both now and in the future.  A 
breakdown of expenditure compared to budget is given in the high needs annexe.

4.7 RBWM is proposing a 2 year deficit reduction programme in light of prospective NFF 
changes and the availability of additional headroom going into 2017/18. 3 Years is an option 
however if the Government does continue to allow local flexibility between blocks as set out 
in the NFF consultation. 

4.8      Potential options to manage the pressures within each block are explained in detail in the 
attached annexes :-

Annexe 1 High Needs Block

Annexe 2 Schools Block

Annexe 3 Early Years Block

4.9 The high needs block will be subject to challenging savings targets over the next 2 years, 
but this will not be sufficient alone to bring the DSG into balance by 31st March 2019. The 
strategy for managing the DSG is therefore proposed as follows:-

i) Making savings in the high needs block totalling £1.8m which will focus on keeping 
more young people in local mainstream provision

  
18



ii) Use of School Block Headroom
 
iii) AWPU reduction of 0.5%  to fund a DSG reserve.

iv) Use of Early Years retention monies.       

4.11 The availability  of additional headroom  changes this and a possible revised strategy could 
be summarised as follows:- 

4..12 The impact on each block is described in the relevant annexes.  The main differences are    
that high needs block savings are reduced to recognise that future funding maybe reduced 
as a result of the DFE national formula.  It should be possible to clear the deficit by 31st 
March 2019,  

4.13  The main risk to the strategy is the success of the savings programme within the high needs 
block.  The suggested savings on high needs are high level at this point and these need to 
be firmed up at the next forum meeting.  Forum are asked to endorse that a working group 
is established in order to implement this.

4.14  It is important that this strategy is monitored on a regular basis and that members are 
regularly informed of progress.  It is therefore suggested that monitoring the DSG strategy is 
a standing item for each future forum meeting. 

19



ANNEX 1
HIGH  NEEDS   BLOCK  ANNEX

The pressures within the High Needs Block arise from increasing numbers of pupils 
requiring EHCP’s. This is as a result of the Children and Families Act 2014 and the 
increasing numbers requiring support post 16.

   NCY      Age Sept 2015 Sept 2016 Teacher 
Group 
Change

Cohort 
Change

     18      23        0        3        3         1
     17      22        2        3        1         1
     16      21        2      10        8         1
     15      20        9      19      10         1
     14      19       18      38      20         1
     13      18       37      62      25         3
     12      17       59      77      18         4
     11      16       73      83      10         3
     10      15       80      71       -9         7
       9      14       64      61       -3         6
       8      13       55      58        3         2
       7      12       56      65        9         8
       6      11       57      60        3         9
       5      10       51      42       -9         6
       4        9       36      56       20         4
       3        8       52      36      -16         9
       2        7       27      43       16         9 
       1        6        34      34        0       14
       0        5       20      13       -7       11
      -1        4         2        4        2         4
      -2        3         0        1        1         1
   Total      734       839              105     105

The table shows that numbers are increasing within every year group. 

A summary of the high needs budgets are shown as follows:-

        SEN Group 2015-16 2016-17 2016-17   2016-17
Outturn  Budget Projection Overspend
     £k      £k       £k        £k

Mainstream Schools Top Ups    1,897         1,823    1,420     (403)
Special Schools and RP Places    2,771    2,771    2,771          0
Special Schools and RP Top Ups    3,396    3,577    3,459     (118)
Forest Bridge Top Ups         0       392       593       202
Ind and NMSS Schools Top Ups    5,663      5,044    6,326      1,282 
SEN Support Services    1,050    1,033    1,195        162
Alternative Provision    2,111    2,147    2,273        126
Totals  16,888  16,787  18,037     1,250

20



ANNEX 1 
The table below illustrates how a strategy maybe implemented.  The columns show the SEN 
services where the savings will be introduced, which align to the previous table. The rows 
are a description of the individual plans that will be introduced in order to ensure the savings 
occur.
  
A reduction in top ups would involve applying a percentage reduction to all top ups in 
relation to RBWM schools, including the special school. The new matrix model will be 
applied as normal but the agreed % cut would be deducted for all payments.

The High Needs Funding Review relates to the recent review which is a later agenda item. 
This review proposed an equitable methodology for deciding on the appropriate level of top 
up funding for individuals who meet the criteria for additional high needs funding.  Although 
not implemented for the purpose of reducing costs, it will provide a clear process for 
triggering additional funding leading to greater consistency across all schools. This stand 
should be considered in hand with the proposed universal % reduction in top up payments.

Alternative provision is a mix of statutory provision (PRU) for permanently excluded and 
vulnerable medical; hard to place; and those pupils at risk of missing education. It is 
proposed to clearly delineate PRU costs for and to establish a clear process for other 
access to AP funds in line with the strategy to retain young people in local mainstream 
provision via the early help hub services.

Each SEN service will be asked to take part in a review of the service impact of savings 
before Easter and to bring final proposals to be implemented for the new academic year. 

            Improved commissioning would involve implementing a specific project to review all 
specialist payments.  Using an invest to save methodology, each placement would be 
formally reviewed over time, specifically looking at costs, value for money and 
appropriateness. Note – this is in addition to the normal individual annual review of each 
EHCP.  

The DFE have announced that each Local Authority should implement and publish a 
strategy for their high needs provision. To enable this to happen the DFE are distributing 
£23m nationally and RBWM’s share of this is £66k. 

21



ANNEX 1
Implementing These Proposals 

Funding Forum are asked to approve or make amendments to the matrix below  Any 
amendments must total £1.8m by the end of March 2019.

22



 ANNEX 2
SCHOOLS  BLOCK  ANNEXE

There were 3 options suggested at the working group on 13th December as to how savings could 
be made within the schools block to help fund high needs pressures.

i) Withholding headroom 
ii) 0.5% AWPU reduction 
iii) 1% AWPU reduction .

It was stated that these savings would be one off for 2017-18 because the schools block would be 
ring-fenced from April 2018 onwards.  Since the meeting, the DFE have relaxed the rules around 
the ring-fencing of the blocks and the consultation states:-

a. As announced in July 2016, there will be no ring-fence on the schools block in 2017-18. 
Local authorities are able to transfer funding between their schools and high needs 
budgets. We will monitor this carefully and in March 2017 will collect more information to 
establish new planned spending baselines on schools and high needs, as explained in 
paragraph 3.8. 

b. In 2018-19 and subsequent years there will be no restrictions on the transfer of funding 
between the high needs funding block, the central schools services block and the 
elements of early years funding that local authorities are allowed to retain for central 
spending. It will also remain possible for local authorities to transfer funds into their high 
needs budgets from sources other than their DSG allocation. 

c.  Furthermore, in 2018-19 we propose to provide an opportunity for local authorities to 
transfer funds, from the funding that schools are due to receive through the schools 
formula, to their high needs budget. To exercise this flexibility, local authorities would 
have to get the agreement of their schools forum and a majority of primary and/or 
secondary schools and academies (with transfers confined to the primary and 
secondary elements of the schools block as agreed by phase). We will review the 
degree of movement in 2017-18 through a second baseline exercise and, in the light of 
that, consider whether there should be a limit on transfers in 2018-19, amounting to no 
more than, say, 2% or 3% of the high needs block allocation. In any case local 
authorities would continue to be obliged to meet the minimum funding guarantee for 
mainstream schools.”

This is quoted for information purposes only.  The intention is for RBWM to work as closely as 
possible with schools and agencies to manage the high needs budget from within existing 
resources.
 

Withholding Headroom 

Pupil numbers have increased in 2017-18 and the DSG funding rate received is higher than 
that paid out to schools.  This results in there being headroom of approximately £300k which 
should be added to the schools budget.

In addition to this the total of the schools budget is approximately £400k less than anticipated 
due mainly to lower prior attainment numbers.  £150k of this £400k saving will fund the 
required increase in the growth fund. 23



ANNEX 2

This means that the amount available for headroom is £547k rather than £300k suggested in 
December.  Given the information above it is also assumed this is ongoing rather than one-off. 
However proposals are not intended to be taken individually it is the strategy as a whole.  If the 
HNB savings are delivered successfully then more money can be delivered into the schools 
block.

Reduction in AWPU of 0.5% 

The possibility of reducing schools budgets in order to fund high needs pressures, was 
discussed at the December meeting. Whilst headroom and the high needs allocation have both 
increased, this remains a proposal due to the possibility of future high needs allocations 
decreasing. It is intended that the money saved will be invested into a DSG reserve and 
released when/if required and by reference to a future forum meeting.

The problem with AWPU reductions, is that it does not impact on schools equally because of 
the MFG calculations. 

The impact that a 0.5% reduction will have now is shown below:-

24



25



2018-19 Onwards

This will only release £229k in 2017-18 because of the impact of MFG. This will mean a further 
£71k will be required in 2018-19.  This could probably be found from additional headroom, or 
other measures rather than a continuation of an AWPU reduction.  

This strategy needs to be linked to the DFE final proposals for future funding arrangements 
which will be implemented from April 2018.
It is the intention to maximise the schools block as much as possible but the high needs 
pressures have to be managed.  It is therefore important that the strategy is closely monitored 
and reported to members. 

EARLY  YEARS  BLOCK
26



The details of the Early Years National Funding Formula (EYNFF) are covered in more detail under 
agenda item 2.

The Early Years Block  is increasing by 13.9% in real terms.  The DFE have stipulated that 93% of 
funding must be passed onto providers. (95% in 2018-19)  RBWM currently holds 2% of funding for 
central items.

It is therefore proposed that 7% is held centrally and this would mean that £300k could be used to 
fund early years SEN services, that are currently paid for by the high needs block. 

The 93% and 95% pass through includes provision for an SEN inclusion fund.  It is intended that 
the SEN inclusion fund is funded from the central provision rather than by top slicing the rates paid 
to providers.  RBWM is therefore not holding back the maximum amounts.  A summary is shown in 
the table below:-

 

Amount
     £k

EYNFF  Mainstream Funding     8,861 
Transitional  Funding Nursery Schools        210
Total  Funding  (a)     9,071

Passed onto providers (93%) of £8.861m     8,241  
Transitional Funding Nursery Schools           210
Total Funding Passed to Providers (b)     8,451

Central  Funding (a) – (b)        620

The central retention will allow for current central spend to be funded, SEN inclusion fund of £150k 
and fund early years SEN services that are currently funded by the high needs block.  The retention 
monies will also include £40k additional funds to enhance the EYPP allocations for the next 3 
years.

The allowable retention for 2018-19 will be 95% and therefore only £250k can be used to assist 
with high needs pressures.  As with the schools block, it will be possible to delegate more funding if 
the high needs pressures are managed. 

27



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD SCHOOLS FORUM

Date: 31st Jan 2017 AGENDA ITEM: 3

Title: 2017-18 Schools Budget and Centrally Retained Budget Proposals

Responsible
officer:

Kevin McDaniel, Head of Education and Schools

Contact 
officer:

Phil Herd 
Temporary Lead Accountant

Tel:
E-mail

01628 794632
Phil.Herd@RBWM.gov.uk

1 SUMMARY

1.1 This paper summarises RBWM’s proposed schools budget allocation and the schools block 
central budgets.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

Schools Forum is asked to approve: 

2.1 The final 2017-18 funding formula as set out in Annexe 3 to this report and the indicative 
individual school budget shares set out in annexe 4.

2.2 That maintained school members (head teachers and governors) of the Schools Forum vote 
separately by sector, and individually for each service, whether each of the services in the tables 
within 3.7 should be provided centrally, and to approve the de-delegation rates shown. The vote 
will be binding on all maintained schools in the relevant sector.

2.3 Forum members are asked to approve the central budgets as described in section 4.

3 DELEGATED SCHOOL BUDGETS FOR PUPILS AGED 4-16

3.1 The EFA have issued the October 2016 datasets which have been used to populate the 2017-18 
school funding formula. As confirmed at the Schools Forum meeting in October 2016, RBWM’s 
2017-18 formula is unchanged from last year. The overall funding allocated through the final 
formula, the funding rates, and the pupil units are shown in Annex 3 with equivalent 2016-17 
information for comparison. Individual school budget shares are shown in Annexe 4. 

3.2 These proposals exclude the 0.5% reduction on AWPU. The decision on this, needs to be taken 
later in the agenda. 

3.3 Funding allocated through the formula (including academies) has increased by £1.05m from   
£79.836m in 2016-17 to £80.885m in 2017-18. This is mainly due to a net increase of 375 pupils 
on roll.  The numbers of pupils attracting low prior attainment funding have fallen meaning that 
the allocation via these factors have fallen from £5.232m to £5.136m The Minimum Funding 
Guarantee (MFG) has reduced slightly from £309k to £303k. This may appear insignificant, but if 
all things had remained the same, the MFG would have reduced by approximately £125k. The 
reason this has not happened, is as a result of the fall in prior attainment funding. The schools 
that are gaining, have had those gains capped at 15%. 

29

Agenda Item 6



3.4 Other than the changes mentioned in 3.3 the formula for 2017-18 is similar to 2016-17 has 
demonstrated in the table below:-

  2017-18    2016-17
Distributed via Basic Entitlement   79.18%   78.72%
Pupil Led Factors   89.94%   89.82%
Primary : Secondary Ratio    1:1.27     1:1.26

3.5 In addition to funding allocated through the formula, schools and academies will continue to 
receive other funding:
 Early years funding
 Post 16 funding
 High needs funding –place funding for resource units, and top-up for all high needs pupils
 Pupil premium
 PE and sports grant
 Universal infant free meals funding
 Capital grant.

De-Delegation

3.6 ‘De-delegation’ is the mechanism by which maintained schools pool some of their delegated 
budget in order to benefit from specific services that could be provided centrally in a more 
efficient and targeted way and at less risk to individual schools. As in previous, any decisions 
made to de-delegate funding in 2016 to 2017 relate to that year only, so new decisions are 
required for  2017-18 to ‘de-delegate’ funding for those services prescribed by the EFA. Schools 
forum members for primary maintained schools and secondary maintained schools must decide 
separately for each phase whether the service should be provided centrally. The decision is 
binding on all maintained mainstream schools in that phase. 

3.7 The individual school budget allocations shown at annexe 4 are before any top slice for de-
delegation. Annexe 5 shows the amounts each maintained school will have deducted from their 
budget share based on the de-delegation rates set out in the table below. If approved, funding 
will be removed from schools’ delegated budgets before school budgets are issued. Annexe 2 
gives more information on the services provided centrally.

 Primary
De-delegated services 2017-18

Method 2017-18 
Rate

2017-18 
Total 
£000 

2016-17 
Rate

2016-17
Total 
£000 

Contingencies including schools in 
financial difficulties and deficits of closing 
schools

Per pupil £15 £121 £15 £135k

Behaviour support services
Per IDACI 

pupil £50 £53 £50 £63k

Per pupil £1
Licences/subscriptions Per school

Not offered
£150

£15k

Staff costs supply cover (e.g. maternity, 
long term sick, trade union and public 
duties, suspended staff reimbursement)

Per pupil £25 £201 £25 £225k

30



 Secondary
De-delegated services 2017-18

Method 2017-18 
Rate

2017-18 
Total 
£000 

2016-17 
Rate

2016-17
Total 
£000 

Contingencies including schools in 
financial difficulties and deficits of closing 
schools

Per pupil n/a n/a Secondaries did not 
approve

Behaviour support services
Per IDACI 

pupil n/a n/a Secondaries did not 
approve

Per pupil £1
Licences/subscriptions Per school

     Not Offered
£150

£5k

Staff costs supply cover (e.g. maternity, 
long term sick, trade union and public 
duties, suspended staff reimbursement)

Per pupil £25 £15 £25 £96k

3.8 The main change for 2017-18 is that it will no longer be possible to de-delegate funding for 
licenses and subscriptions. Most of the licenses that schools need and use regularly are now 
covered by the DfE’s central procurement arrangements1 which allow schools to operate under 
these licenses without further cost to themselves. The licenses covered by this arrangement are:

 Copyright Licensing Agency, for print and digital copyright content in books, journals and 
magazines

 Schools Printed Music Licence, for printed music
 Newspaper Licensing Agency, for newspapers and magazines
 Educational Recording Agency, for recording and use of radio and television programmes
 Filmbank and Motion Picture Licensing Company, for showing of films
 Performing Right Society for Music, Phonographic Performance Ltd. and the Mechanical 

Copyright Protection Society, for playing and recording music
 Christian Copyright Licensing International, for hymns and other Christian music

3.9 For 2017-18, schools which need any of the few remaining licenses that are not on the DfE’s 
central license list, including software licenses and the Fisher Family Trust subscription, will have 
to purchase them from their own delegated budgets.

3.10 Schools forum members for primary maintained schools and secondary maintained schools are 
asked to vote separately for each phase on the de-delegation arrangements as set out above.

4 CENTRAL SCHOOLS EXPENDITURE

4.1 RBWM plans to spend £1.283m on central services funded from the Schools Block is in 2017-18, 
(see table within 4.2 below), an increase of £128k on 2016-17. 

4.2 Under School Finance regulations, Schools block funding for specified services may only be 
centrally retained with the agreement of the Schools Forum, and provided that budgets are made 
available to academies and free schools on the same basis as maintained schools. The Table 
below sets out RBWM’s proposals for planned central schools expenditure in 2017-18. This is 
where SF approval is required.

1 This is where the DfE purchases licenses on behalf of all state funded primary and secondary schools and recharges the cost 
to LAs’ central schools budget. See https://www.gov.uk/copyright-licences-information-for-schools for more information. 

31

https://www.gov.uk/copyright-licences-information-for-schools


 Central schools expenditure 2017-18 requiring SF approval
EFA limitations S251 

line
Expenditure budget 16-17

£000
17-18
£000

Change
£000

No SF approval required Central licenses negotiated by 
the DfE 98 98 -

SF approval required, no 
increases or new commitments 1.4.1 Combined services budgets 268 268 -

1.4.2 Admissions 277 277 -SF approval required, no 
increases allowed 1.4.3 Schools Forum 46 30 (16)

1.4.8 Fees for pupils without SEN 110 110SF approval required, increases 
allowed 1.4.10 ‘Growth fund’ for basic need 356 500 +144
Total 1,155 1,283 128

4.3 Further information on these proposed budget changes are set out below:

Combined services budgets

4.4 ‘Combined services budgets’ are where the schools forum agreed prior to April 2013 a 
contribution from the schools budget to services which would otherwise be funded from other 
sources. Schools Forum approved the use of £268k of Schools Block funding for 2016-17 to 
support expenditure on the services set out in the table below. There are no new commitments or 
increases in budget for 2017-18.

  Combined services budgets (No new commitments or increases allowed) £000
Service 17-18 16-17 Description of services provided

Discretionary 
education psychology 
services

£104 £104

Expenditure on non statutory services to provide all 
schools with a link EP, three Planning and Review 
meetings per year, availability for telephone 
consultations and email support as required.

Information, advice 
and support for 
parents

£60 £60
Expenditure on impartial information, advice and support 
services for children and young people with special 
educational needs and/or disabilities, and their parents. 

Early Help advisors in 
schools £104 £104

Expenditure on early intervention social care support for 
pupils in school, to provide a link worker for telephone 
consultations and email support as required.

Total £268 £268

Transfer of Retained Duties Education Services Grant into the Schools Block

4.5 Schools block funding in 2017-18 now includes £315k previously paid to the Council as the 
retained duties element of the education services grant (ESG). This grant previously supported 
statutory services provided centrally on behalf of all schools, including:

 Education welfare services (prosecution of parents for non-attendance; tracking children 
missing from education; and issues relating to child employment).

 Asset management (capital programme planning and functions relating to academy leases)
 Statutory and regulatory duties – (including finance, HR and legal functions and the strategic 

planning of children’s services).

4.6 In October 2016, Schools Forum gave their approval to retain £315k in 2017-18 to pay for the 
services that were previously funded by the retained duties element of ESG.

£000
Education Welfare services 83
Capital planning 86
Statutory and regulatory duties 146

315

32



ANNEX 1

.

Centrally retained budgets

Approval required Services covered (and funding block) 
Schools forum approval is not 
required (although they should be 
consulted).

 high needs block provision 
 central licences negotiated by the Secretary of State

Schools forum approval is required 
for each line 

 early years block provision 
 remission of boarding fees at maintained schools 

and academies
 places in independent schools for non-SEN pupils 
 services previously funded by the retained rate of the 

ESG.
Schools forum approval is required 
for each line. The budget cannot 
exceed the 2016-17 agreed amount.

 admissions 
 servicing of schools forum

Schools forum approval is required 
for each line. The budget cannot 
exceed the 2016-17 agreed amount 
and no new commitments can be 
entered into.

 capital expenditure funded from revenue so no new 
projects can be charged.

 contribution to combined budgets – this is where the 
schools forum agreed prior to April 2013 a 
contribution from the schools budget to services 
which would otherwise be funded from other 
sources.

 existing termination of employment costs (costs for 
specific individuals must have been approved prior 
to April 2013 so no new redundancy costs can be 
charged).

Schools forum approval is required 
for each line including approval of 
the criteria for allocating funds to 
schools.

 funding for significant pre-16 pupil growth, including 
new schools set up to meet basic need, whether 
maintained or academy 

 funding for good or outstanding schools with falling 
rolls where growth in pupil numbers is expected 
within three years.

33



ANNEX 2
2017-18 DSG allocation

Tab 201718 DSG from 

 Behaviour 
Support

Funding to cover central Behaviour Support Team 
providing support to young people, as well as helping 
schools manage behaviour more effectively:

 Providing 1:1 support for children and young 
people.

 Observation and assessments as appropriate.
 Advice and training to families and schools. 
 Evidence-based programmes for groups of pupils, 

such as Nurture groups, ‘Friends for Life’.
 Transition and anti-bullying programmes for 

vulnerable groups and whole class level.
 Support to develop strategies to manage difficult 

behaviour.
 Regular monitoring and support for ELSAs.
 Promoting the social and emotional skills that 

underpin effective learning.

 Positive change for children and 
young people.

 Bespoke training.
 Dissemination of effective practice 

across schools.
 The ability to manage resources on 

a needs basis and to respond to 
the individual needs of a school at 
short notice. 

 Ability to flexibly support staff in the 
workplace. 

 Expertise in understanding of the 
social and emotional aspects of 
emotional or challenging 
behaviour.

 Suitably qualified and experienced 
staff available on a needs basis.

 Responsive and supportive 
service.

8Maternity 
Cover / 
Trade Union 
Duties

Funding for eligible staff costs when there is an absence 
from school for official reasons. The main areas are: 
maternity, trade union duties, magistrates and jury 
service. Schools need to ensure sufficient staff are in 
place to meet their responsibilities. The incidence of 
these costs tends to be uneven, by year and by school.

Allocations to schools under the ‘suspended staff’ policy. 

Main benefits include: 
 Schools pick up the costs for cover 

only, LA funds cost of substantive 
post.

 Schools avoid double costs of 
substantive post and supply cover 

 scheme shares risk, eliminates 
unpredictability, and helps financial 
management.

34



ANNEX 3

35



ANNEX 4

36



ANNEX 4

37



ANNEX 5 

38



ANNEX 5

39



This page is intentionally left blank



1

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD SCHOOLS FORUM

Date: 31 Jan 2017 AGENDA ITEM: 6

Title: Outcome of DFE Second Consultation on National Funding Formula

Responsible
officer:

Kevin McDaniel, Head of Education and Schools

Contact 
officer:

Phil Herd
Temporary Lead Accountant

Tel:
E-mail

01628 794632
Phil.herd@rbwm.gov.uk 

1 SUMMARY

1.1 This paper outlines the DFE proposals for a national funding formula for schools, high 
needs and central block.  The impact on RBWM schools and central DSG is highlighted and 
there are suggestions on how the Council and Schools Forum may wish to respond to the 
consultation.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

Schools Forum is asked to note 

2.1    The DFE Proposals on School Funding

2.2    The DFE proposals on High Needs Funding

2.3    The DFE proposals Central Schools Services Funding

Schools Forum is asked to approve:-

i) A process for responding to the consultation.

3  INTRODUCTION

3.1 The DFE launched the consultation on funding reform (schools and high needs) in March 
2016.  The original intention was for the results to be published in early autumn and 
implementation in April 2017.  As members are aware the implementation has now slipped 
to April 2018.

3.2 The consultation covers all aspects of DSG excluding early years.  That is schools block, 
high needs and central block.  Each of these blocks is covered in separate sections.

3.3 These proposals are under consultation and a separate section explains a process of how 
we may engage in responding to the consultation.  Whilst this report discusses three blocks, 
there are only two consultations, schools and high needs. The central schools services 
block is included within the schools block consultation. The deadline for responses to the 
consultation is 22nd March 2017.

4 SCHOOLS  BLOCK

4.1      The immediate concern is how individual schools within RBWM fare under these proposals. 
            A summary of the impact on RBWM schools is given in annex 1. A summary of the 
            implications is given below :-

41

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Phil.herd@rbwm.gov.uk


 2018-19 With Transitional Protection

 Primaries net loss = £68k
 Secondaries and middle schools net gain = £361k. 
 All schools net gain = £293k

           
2019-20 Without any Transitional Protection

   
 primaries net loss = £138k

secondaries and middle schools net gain = £349k 
     All schools net gain = £211k.

4.2 Individual schools will have their own opinions and responses to the consultation.  The 
purpose of this report is to set out general themes which may assist in the Council’s, Forum 
and School’s responses to the consultation. IE This is about the impact on the   size of the 
RBWM schools block, rather than examining the impact on individual schools.

4.3    It is important to recognise that these changes are after the additional £2.5m that was 
distributed in 2015-16. This £2.5m was an initial step towards a national funding formula and 
should be taken into account when considering the impact this has had on RBWM schools.  
The £2.5m meant an additional 3% (appx) for schools at the time.  This in effect means that 
all schools have gained by between 0.6% and 7%.

4.4 A summary of the proposals for individual factors is shown in annex 2.  The major change, 
is that schools nationally currently allocate 76.6% via basic entitlement and the DFE 
proposal is that only 72.4% is distributed via this factor.  This is a major movement and is 
unfavourable towards RBWM schools. RBWM for 2017-18 (formula proposal) allocates 
77.9% via this factor.

4.5 The DFE document argues that some local authorities do not use the deprivation factors to  
a large extent because derivation is evenly spread across their schools. This is the basis for 
the argument to increase deprivation funding nationally.  The document makes no reference 

      to the narrowing of the attainment gap and exactly why this additional investment in   
      deprivation is required.  Pupil Premium Grant arrangements will remain unchanged and 

£2.4bn is distributed via this grant. This is not in-significant, representing 7.5% of the  
national funding pot.  Other general observations regarding the formulae are given below:-

 A general theme within the document is that it is about re - distributing funds rather than 
a critical examination of what a school needs to operate.  It could be argued that a 
starting point should be what a typical primary and a typical secondary school needs to 
operate at a basic level.  Additional needs and circumstances could be added on to 
that. IE a needs led approach, rather than a redistribution.

 The next major change is that schools currently allocate 4.3% of funding via low 
attainment and the proposal is to increase this to 7.5%.  This is probably a favourable 
movement as RBWM currently allocates 6.3% via this factor.  The rationale behind this 
movement is that it targets funds to individual pupils with additional educational needs.

 The DFE proposal is to set the lump sum at £110,000. In RBWM the figures are primary 
£124k and secondary £125k.  The immediate concern maybe is that this is a reduction.  
That is not necessarily the situation.  Schools may gain by having a smaller lump sum 
and more money in basic entitlement. It depends entirely on the size of the school and 
therefore schools will have differing opinions on this. National distribution and local 

42



formulae can be confused. The current lump sum, is a local decision, there is no 
recognition of lump sums in the current national distribution system.  This is a new 
factor as far as national distributions are concerned.  The largest overall gainers under 
the schools block proposals are small rural schools, typically +20%.  726 schools gain 
by 10% or more and only approximately 50 of these are in non rural areas.  It could be 
argued that having this factor discourages school mergers and therefore efficiencies.

 There has been strong pressure from the f40 group to have a national sparsity factor. 
The new formula allows for this but only distributes 0.1% (£27m) via this factor. Given 
that small rural schools benefit from the lump sum (see 4.6 above), the validity of a 
sparsity factor is questionable. The sparsity factor is also over complex given the 
amount of money it distributes.

 The primary secondary ratio is 1:1.29 nationally and the proposal is to maintain this at 
the current rate. In RBWM the rate is 1:1.26, which is why secondary schools favour 
better than primaries do. The document states “a recent review of the existing evidence 
on the impact of investment across phases (Gibbons and McNally, 2013) found that the 
impact of additional spend is similar across the country and that there is no strong case 
to make significant change to the current balance between the phases”

 The formula allows for an overall floor of -3%, which means no school will lose by more 
than 3%, when this formula is introduced in full. It could be argued that this is not a 
complete formula review because much of the previous formula funding is within the 
base.  RBWM schools do not benefit from this because no RBWM school loses by the 
maximum 3%. Removing this floor and investing more into basic entitlement, would 
therefore benefit RBWM schools. (It is suggested that the capping arrangements are 
costing £200m) The MFG at -1.5% will remain. 

 Schools gains are capped at 3% per pupil in 2018-19 and a further 2.5% in 2019-20.  
This does not impact on RBWM schools over the two year period, since no schools 
receives gains of more than 5.5%.  

 The losses and gains arrangements only apply up until 2019-20. The arrangements 
beyond that are unclear.  Schools are continually encouraged to set three year plans 
etc. but the DFE are only guaranteeing funding for 2 years.

4.5 The above observations are high level. This report cannot possibly cover all the details 
within the DFE document.

5      HIGH  NEEDS  BLOCK

5.1      The major change is that the high needs block allocations will be made to local authorities 
via a national formula rather than historical spend.  It is proposed to use “proxy” data such 
as deprivation rather than factors which reflect actual spend (e.g. EHCP’s). The reason for 
this is that the number of EHCP for example, would give perverse incentives top issue more 
plans. The broad formula factors are outlined in the table within 5.3 below. 

5.2       The important headline is that no local authority will lose funding when the new high needs 
block formula is introduced.  What is not clear is the point at which local authorities will 
begin to lose funding, which is either 2019-20 or 2020-21.  This is significant for RBWM 

43



because the funding floor protection is £2.3m.  IE If the funding floor is to disappear in 2019-
20, then the HNB allocation for that year would be £2.3m lower.  This is unlikely to happen 
because there will no doubt be transitional arrangements which would phase such a 
reduction over 4 or 5 years.

5.3 A loss of £2.3m funding within the HNB is disappointing given the pressures that exist within 
that block. However from the overall picture on the DSG as shown in 7 below, it would 
appear that DFE are effectively reversing the movements between the schools and high 
needs block that have been previously agreed and reported.

5.4 The proposals around applying the formula for the high needs block are complex, whilst the 
totals allocated via each factor appear over simplistic. The details around how the 
calculations will operate could be covered in the consultation process.  A brief outline of the 
formula and the %ages proposed to be allocated via these factors are given below:-

    %age To Be Allocated

Population                   50%

Derivation Factors Free School Meals                   10%

IDACI                   10%

Prior Attainment Key Stage 2                     7.5%

Key Stage 4                     7.5%

Health and Disability Bad Health                     7.5%

Disability                     7.5%

5.5  A brief summary of early observations surrounding the proposed allocations are given 
below:-

 The initial comment, is that the percentages used are over simplistic and do not reflect 
the percentages used within the schools block. 

 The population is 0 to 18 but the high needs block supports young people up to the age 
of 25.  It may however be difficult to obtain census information for people aged up to 25.  
If more than 50% was allocated via this factor, it would favour RBWM.

 The schools block puts more emphasis on free school meals than IDACI. (Approx. 
1:1.24) A greater weighting to FSM would favour RBWM.

 The schools block gives a greater emphasis to prior attainment than the high needs 
proposals do. If prior attainment were to increase, at the expense of deprivation, it would 
favour RBWM.

 The information used to collect information on bad health is “ The number of children 
aged 0 to 16 in bad or very bad health who were resident in the local authority area, as 

44



reported by parents in the 2011 general population census”. This would not appear to be 
robust source of data for the distribution of funds.

5.6 The formula projections are based on current numbers and future data sets (e.g. movement 
in population) will change future allocations.  The high needs block has not increased in line 
with pupil numbers over recent years and this situation is not likely to change. The 
document does state that the overall funding envelope for high needs will be the major 
factor in future allocations. Population in a local authority could therefore increase but the 
attached funding decrease, if the national pot remains static. E.g. If the national population 
increases by 0.05% and an authority population increases by 0.025% then that authority will 
suffer a loss, if the national pot for population remains static.

5.7 The overriding concern is that there is a risk the HNB allocation could reduce by 
approximately £2.3m over the next 5-6 years.  This has to be built into the DSG strategy, 
referred to in agenda  item 1 of this forum.  The formula allocations will become clearer in 
the summer. At that point high needs block allocations need to be projected as accurately 
as is possible, over the next few years. These projections need to be built into the DSG 
strategy.

6          Central  School  Services  Block

6.1 The DFE propose a fourth DSG Block from April 2018 entitled “central school services 
block” (cssb) which will be a combination of the current schools block central spend and the 
ESG retained duties.  The central schools services block is relatively small (£1.1m) but the 

      proposals around allocation and spend are complex.

6.2  It is intended to introduce a formula ( see 6.6 below) which allocate funds for cssb in future 
which will be based   upon historical data, pupil numbers and deprivation. The headline 
figure is that this formula would lead to a reduction in funding of £290k, which is significant 
given the current allocation is only £1.1m.  The proposals for transitional arrangements is 
that losses are limited to 2.5% in 2018-19 and 2019-20.     

6.3 The current schools block central spend is summarised in the following table:-
        

S251
Line

           
Amount

           
Amount

    £k                       £k                   
1.4.1 Contribution to Combined Budgets Early Help Social Work   104                

Educational Psychology   104              
Other Combined Budgets     60

Sub Total 1.4.1     268

1.4.2.  School Admissions     277
1.4.3 Servicing Schools Forum       46
1.4.8. Fees to Indep Schools without SEN       110

1.4.13 Other Items Licences and SIMS     98
Contributions to Properties     69 

    167

Grand Total     868

6.4 The ESG retained element of £315k was covered in detail at Octobers Forum and a 
summary of the spend is repeated below:- 

45



       £k
Education Welfare services        83
Capital planning                            86
Statutory and regulatory duties    146

       Total                                     315

6.5  It is likely that any future reduction in cssb allocations will have to be met by savings in the 
budget lines shown in 6.3.  This may well be possible but there will not be an opportunity to 
use cssb resources to fund high needs pressures. (This will be the case with some local 
authorities).

6.6 The total current resources within cssb are £1.183m which is the £868k in 6.3 plus the ESG 
of £315k.  This figure is based upon historical spend and as with high needs, the DFE want 
to move to a national formula for re-distribution. The proposal is that historic commitments 
continue to be funded via historical spend and the remaining funding ( on-going 
responsibilities) be distributed 90% pupil numbers and 10% deprivation.

6.7  Historic commitments for RBWM are £268k, which directly relate to line 1.4.1, shown in the 
table within 6.3 above. Other local authorities will include spend on termination of 
employment costs, capital expenditure funded from revenue, prudential borrowing, 
exceptions agreed by the Secretary of State, and other specific grants. RBWM does not 
have spend in these areas and therefore the total spend for RBWM is relatively low 
compared to other lea’s. The proposal to protect this funding on historical spend does not 
therefore favour RBWM. (see 6.8 below.)

6.8 RBWM budget on historical spend is 0.09% of the national budget, whilst RBWM schools 
population is 0.26% of the total population. It would therefore be beneficial for RBWM if 
these funds were distributed according to pupil numbers.   Basing discretionary spend of 
this nature, according to historical spend is a disincentive to save money and/or use 
resources within the other blocks.  Also, many LA’s use this spend for invest to save 
initiatives. Prudential borrowing, is by definition, invest to save. It would therefore appear 
that local authorities will be protected on their spend, whilst also benefiting from their 
corresponding savings elsewhere within the DSG.

6.9 The remaining £915k, (£1.183m - £268k) will be allocated 90% according to pupils and 10% 
on deprivation. RBWM spending share on on-going commitments is 0.38%, which is higher 
than the pupil proportion of 0.26%. Therefore allocating funding on the basis of population, 
will obviously have an adverse impact on RBWM. To some extent this is a penalty for being 
a small local authority. Take for example the admissions service.  Larger local authorities 
should spend less per pupil on admissions because they have the benefit of economies of 
scale.  It could therefore be argued that the formula should include a lump sum (say £250k) 
for every local authority and then allocate the remainder on pupil numbers and deprivation.

7 Overall  Impact  on DSG

7.1 Each funding reform has the objective of being more clear and transparent.  In 2013-14 
there was one overall DSG and from April 2019 there will be four blocks, each with their own 
set of associated regulations. Dividing the DSG up into blocks means forum members will 
easily lose sight of the overall impact these reforms are having.  The table below attempts to 
bring together all the formula changes in the DSG.  It ignores the impact of transitional 
arrangements, ie assumes the formulae are introduced in full in the first year.  For early 
years it ignores the impact of the additional 15 hours. 

This is illustrative only - if formulae fully implemented

46



Note      £k
    1 Increase in School Block Funding 2015-16    2,500
    2 Net Gain in Schools Block       211 
    3 Gain in Early Years Block    1,136
    4 Loss in High needs Block   - 2,297 
    5 Loss in Central Schools Services Block     -290

Net Gains    1,260
    
Notes

1. Schools were allocated an additional £2.5m in 2015-16 as a move towards a  
national funding formula.  Therefore this has to be included.

2. This net gain is in addition to 1.

3. This is 3 and 4 year olds, new formula distribution, including nursery schools 
protection. It ignores the impact of the additional 15 hours.

4. This would be the figure if the overall protection was removed.  The allocations 
beyond 2018-19 are unclear.

5. Similar to 4.  The allocations beyond 2019-20 are unclear.

7.2 The general conclusion is that DFE have moved money between schools block and high   
needs whilst there is real growth in early years.

8          Consultation Process  

8.1 It is suggested that the consultation process adapted in stage 1 is repeated for stage 2.  
That would involve having an informal meeting of forum members and explaining the 
Council’s draft response to the consultation. Forum members can then formulate their own 
response. 

47



48



49



50



Document is Restricted

51

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 DSG 2017-18 Settlement and Strategy for Managing DSG in Future Years
	6 2017-18 Schools Budget and Centrally Retained Budget Proposals
	9 Outcome of DFE Second Consultation on National Funding Formula
	11 Minutes

